MINUTES

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 24, 2025 AT 6:00 PM

MuNIcIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison,
Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT:
None

OTHERS PRESENT:

Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town
Attorney Paul Cassell, Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones, Town Treasurer Angela
Pennington, Police Chief Joel Hash, Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Billy
Anderson, Assistant Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Andrew Austin, Assistant
Computer Operations Manager Jeff Hooper, Police Officer Kyle Counts, Angela E. Porter,
Glenda Salerno, Jim Cohen, Randal Hamm, Kerry Eans, Mike Forrest, Terry Umberger,
Donna Leonard, Glenda Crockett-Eans

RE: CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order.

RE: ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Mayor Taylor established that a quorum of Council members was present.

RE: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice-Mayor Johnson.
RE: 7:00 P.M. RECESS

Mayor Taylor advised that for informational purposes only, the agenda includes a 7:00
p.m. scheduled recess.

RE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the Approval of Agenda. She inquired if
there was a motion to approve the agenda as presented or to somehow be amended.

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. to
amend Agenda Item 14A to include a Closed Meeting pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.)
(8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding fencing at a Town-owned cemetery. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion
was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilman
Hand, Jr. Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor
Johnson.

RE: CONSENT AGENDA

A. RE: MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION AND THE REGULAR MEETING OF
NOVEMBER 10, 2025

Mayor Taylor presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the work
session and the regular meeting of November 10, 2025. She inquired if there was a
motion to approve the consent agenda.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor, and there being no



opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.

8. RE: PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS

A. RE: BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-26 - STAFF REPORT

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a public hearing to consider
appropriations to the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget in order to amend departmental
budgets due to unexpected expenditures during the fiscal year. She explained that
before she opens the public hearing, Town Treasurer Pennington would present staff
comments to the Council. Town Treasurer Pennington gave a brief overview of the
Staff Report she prepared regarding the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget appropriations.
She stated that a public hearing is required because the amount of budget revisions
exceed one (1) percent of the total budget. A copy of Town Treasurer Pennington's
Staff Report is attached and made part of the minutes.

RE: PUBLIC HEARING - BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-
26

Mayor Taylor advised that the meeting constituted a public hearing (due notice
having been given) to receive comments regarding the appropriations to the Fiscal
Year 2025-26 budget. She inquired if there was anyone present who wished to
address the Council regarding the public hearing. Mayor Taylor advised that there
was no one listed on the sign-in sheet who wished to speak during the public
hearing, however, if there is anyone who would like to speak, now would be the time
to do so. There being no one who wished to speak during the public hearing, Mayor
Taylor stated that she would declare the public hearing closed and proceed with the
agenda.

RE: BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-26 AMENDMENT

Mayor Taylor advised that the next item on the agenda is consideration by the Town
Council to adopt the appropriations to the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget in order to
amend departmental budgets due to unexpected expenditures during the fiscal year.
She inquired if there was a motion to adopt the appropriations to the Fiscal Year
2025-26 budget in order to amend departmental budgets due to unexpected
expenditures during the fiscal year.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilman Hand, Jr.

9. RE: CITIZENS' PERIOD

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Citizens' Period. She stated that there is
one citizen listed on the sign-in sheet who would like to address the Council during
Citizens' Period. Mayor Taylor requested Mr. Terry Umberger to come to the podium and
state his name and address for the recording of the minutes.

Mr. Terry Umberger was recognized and stated that he resides on Laurel Run in
Wytheville. He stated that he spoke at the October 27, Town Council meeting regarding
the Town's water tower and the homeless population. Mr. Umberger addressed the
Council regarding the comments he had made at the previous Town Council meeting
about the homeless issues in town and noted that he was terminated from his job after that
meeting. He continued to explain his concerns regarding being terminated and the Town
Council having a part in him losing his job, due to the comments he made at the October
27, meeting. Councilman Hand stated that he would like to respond to Mr. Umberger's
comments. He advised that he serves on the District Il Governmental Cooperative Board
and that District Il has its own policies. Councilman Hand explained that he did not contact
anyone at District |ll about Mr. Umberger and ask for him to be terminated. Vice-Mayor
Johnson stated that she would not, and that she did not, contact District Il asking for Mr.
Umberger to be terminated. Discussion continued regarding Mr. Umberger's termination
and a complaint that District |1l received regarding this matter. Mayor Taylor stated that she
was very sorry that Mr. Umberger was terminated, and thanked him for his comments.



10. RE: PRESENTATIONS TO TOWN COUNCIL

A.

RE: PRESENTATION - MELISSA PARSONS WITH THE WYTHE COUNTY
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a presentation by Melissa
Parsons, Director of the Wythe County Emergency Communications Center
(WCECC), to introduce herself and provide an update on the Emergency
Communications Center. Ms. Parsons was recognized and stated that she would like
to thank the Town Council for allowing her to speak. She stated that she is from
Smyth County and is, currently, a Bland County resident. Ms. Parsons explained that
she has 35 years of experience in public safety, and that she has held positions such
as a dispatcher, 911 Coordinator/Addressor, trainer, manager, etc. She advised that
she previously served as the Dispatch Training Coordinator at the Southwest Virginia
Law Enforcement Academy in Bristol. Ms. Parsons noted that the WCECC operates
24/7 as the hub for all public safety communications in Wythe County and the Town
of Wytheville. She commented that, currently, there are a total of 21 positions that are
staffed by the Director, Operations Manager and telecommunicators. Ms. Parsons
stated that training requirements are mandated by the Department of Criminal Justice
Services, Virginia State Police, Office of Emergency Services and in-house policy
and procedures. She then presented the Council with information regarding the core
functions, current challenges, current projects and goals of the WCECC. Ms. Parsons
advised that the WCECC remains a cornerstone of Wythe County's public safety
system. She explained that through innovation recruitment, training and technology,
the WCECC continues to deliver dependable emergency communication services.
Ms. Parsons stated that with the Councils’ and the Board of Supervisors’ support, the
WCECC will advance its mission to protect the lives and property of town and county
residents and the motoring public. She commented that she would be happy to
answer any questions of the Council. Councilwoman Pattison inquired about how
many incoming call lines the WCECC has in place. Ms. Parsons stated that there are
four (4) 911 lines and six (6) administration lines. She noted that there are,

typically, three (3) members of staff on shift, unless unforeseen circumstances arise.
Councilwoman Atkins inquired of Ms. Parsons regarding how many calls the WCECC
receives each month. Ms. Parsons advised that the monthly reports containing that
information is sent to Police Chief Hash, and that she will be preparing some
information with comparisons from last year and this year to provide to the Council at
a later date. The Town Council thanked Ms. Parsons for her presentation. A copy of
Ms. Parsons presentation is attached and made part of the minutes.

RE: PRESENTATION - WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS
PROJECT

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a presentation by Assistant
Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Andrew Austin to provide an update on
the design and administration of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements
Project. Assistant Director Austin stated that the Virginia Department of
Environmental Quality (DEQ) Financial Assistance Tentative Approval Letter for
$24,469,000 has been included in the Council meeting packet, and that this is a loan
program with the potential for principal forgiveness. He noted that the Town will not
know the forgiveness amount until the congressionally approved budget has been
passed at the Federal level. Assistant Director Austin explained that the rate on this
loan is, currently, a discount under market at 150 basis points. He commented that
the tentative approval became official on November 18, however, Staff has not
received a formal award letter as of this meeting. Assistant Director Austin stated that
Staff was told to expect the formal award letter by the end of November, which gives
Staff 12 months from the formal award date to prepare for this project to be put out
for bid for construction for each project. He commented that this is a very tight
timeline to prepare $24 million worth of projects designed and put out for bid.
Assistant Director Austin stated that a Request for Proposal (RFP) was submitted to
help find a firm that can assist with the project design before the bid for construction
is submitted. He then briefly reviewed information regarding the RFP that was
submitted and what steps will need to be taken moving forward. Assistant Director
Austin stated that he would like to inform the Council that the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) award has been finalized for the Town's clarifiers that
were destroyed during Hurricane Helene. He noted that the total cost of that project,
as FEMA has calculated, was $5,604,090. Assistant Director Austin advised that



FEMA has granted the Town 75 percent of that cost at $4,203,067. He continued to
discuss the FEMA award that the Town was granted and the next steps moving
forward. The Town Council thanked Assistant Director Austin for the information he
provided them with regarding these topics.

RE: PRESENTATION - OCTOBER 2025 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a presentation by Town Treasurer
Angela Pennington regarding the Town of Wytheville October Financial Statements.
Town Treasurer Pennington reviewed information regarding the October Financial
Statements with the Town Council from an annual comparison, which summarizes
and compares the Town's Financial Statements by revenues and expenditures in the
General Fund, Water Fund and Sewer Fund from this time last year. She noted that
the Town is, currently, lower in General Fund revenue this year versus this time last
year, and that Water and Sewer Fund revenue has increased from this time last year.
Town Treasurer Pennington advised that the total amount of overall revenue from
July to October 2025 is $827,102, and that the Town is $1.49 million over in
expenditures this year in comparison to this time last year. She then continued to
discuss the October Financial Statements and the annual comparisons from the
same time period last year. Town Treasurer Pennington advised that Personal
Property Tax tickets have been mailed, and that Real Estate Tax tickets will be
mailed soon, therefore, the Town will be seeing more revenue come in from Personal
Property and Real Estate Taxes. She then reviewed revenue amounts for Meals,
Lodging and Sales Taxes with the Town Council. Town Treasurer Pennington stated
that she will now be attending a Council meeting each month to review the Town's
Financial Statements with the Town Council. The Town Council thanked Town
Treasurer Pennington for presenting this information to them. A copy of the Town of
Wytheville's October Financial Statements are attached and made part of the
minutes.

11. RE: PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS

(CONTINUED)

A.

RE: SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING FOR LEONARD SPECIAL EXCEPTION
PERMIT AMENDMENT REQUEST

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider scheduling a public
hearing for the January 12, 2026, Town Council meeting to receive comments
regarding the request of Donna Leonard to amend a Special Exception Permit
approved by the Wytheville Town Council on June 9, 2025, to operate an Accounting
and Tax Office on property located at 525 North 4th Street, Tax Parcel Number 41A-
1-22-7, in an R-2 Residential Zoning District. She stated that Assistant Town
Manager Holeton would provide the Council with more information regarding this
request. Assistant Town Manager Holeton gave a brief overview of the Staff Report
she prepared for the Council regarding the request of Donna Leonard. She noted that
the only responsibility that the Council has at this meeting regarding this request is to
schedule the public hearing for the January 12, 2026, Town Council meeting. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was a motion to schedule a public hearing for the January 12,
2026, Town Council meeting to receive comments regarding the request of Donna
Leonard to amend a Special Exception Permit approved by the Wytheville Town
Council on June 9, 2025, to operate an Accounting and Tax Office on property
located at 525 North 4th Street, Tax Parcel Number 41A-1-22-7, in an R-2
Residential Zoning District.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Pattison. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.

12. RE: REPORTS

A.

RE: UPCOMING MEETINGS

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is upcoming meetings. Chief Deputy
Clerk Jones presented the upcoming meetings, as follows:



1. The Town of Wytheville Municipal Offices will be closed, and all services will be
curtailed beginning at noon on Wednesday, November 26, 2025, through Friday,
November 28, 2025, due to the Thanksgiving holiday.

2. The next regular scheduled Wytheville Town Council meeting will be held on
Monday, December 8, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.

13. RE: OTHER BUSINESS

A.

RE: COUNCIL MEMBER TIME

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Council Member Time. She
inquired if Vice-Mayor Johnson had anything she would like to discuss during Council
Member Time. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she did not have anything to discuss
at this time.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Atkins had anything she would like to discuss
during Council Member Time. A motion was made by Councilwoman Atkins and
seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson to approve an additional four (4) holiday hours for
Thanksgiving on Wednesday, November 26, 2025, for this year only. Mayor Taylor
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was
approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vice-Mayor
Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilman
Hand, Jr.

Mayor Taylor stated that she would like to report that Chipotle, Dunkin Donuts and
Taco Bell are coming to town and that they are coming along nicely.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Pattison had anything she would like to
discuss during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Pattison stated that she did not
have anything to discuss at this time.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilman Hand had anything he would like to discuss
during Council Member Time. Councilman Hand stated that he did not have anything
to discuss at this time.

14. RE: CLOSED MEETING

A.

RE: CLOSED MEETING PURSUANT TO § 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) DISCUSSION
REGARDING TOWN MANAGER POSITION.; § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) CONSULTATION
WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING SPECIFIC LEGAL MATTERS - WALNUT
LANE; AND, § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL
REGARDING SPECIFIC LEGAL MATTERS - FENCING AT A TOWN-OWNED
CEMETERY

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to go into a Closed Meeting
pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding Town Manager position;
pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific
legal matters — Walnut Lane; and, pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with
legal counsel regarding specific legal matters - fencing at a Town-owned cemetery.
She inquired if there was a motion to go into a Closed Meeting.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins,
Vice-Mayor Johnson. (6:43 p.m.)

RE: CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING

Mayor Taylor stated that it is necessary for the Council to reconvene into open
session. She advised that it would also be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting.
Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting pursuant to
§ 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding Town Manager position; pursuant to § 2.2-
3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters —
Walnut Lane; pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel



regarding specific legal matters - fencing at a Town-owned cemetery; and, that only
public business matters were heard, discussed or considered by the Council.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins,
Vice-Mayor Johnson. (8:32 p.m.)

15. RE: ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting.
(8:33 p.m.)

Beth A. Taylor, Mayor

Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk



